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Now, the question! Assuming that the just published listing
of Nimrod Smith, Sr. and his first wife, Lettice Nichol Wyatt, is
accurate, then why aren't Talitha, Lemuel, Nimrod, Jr., Dianna,
sarah, Robert and Columbus listed as beneficiaries to Isaac's
estate? At the time we know that Talitha was dead, but what
about Lemuel, Nimrod, Jr., Dianna, Sarah, Robert, and Columbus?
1f they were minors at the time of the death of their brother,
Isaac, then the court would have made note of same in the estate
papers and would have appointed legal guardijanship for them. A
review of the court files did not indicate their presence at all.

Point To Be Made: If Nimrod's first group of children by
Lettice Wyatt excluded the reported relations alluded to then
there must have been a reason. There can be a number of
explanations, but the one that has more than an average
probability can be found in the most quoted author of Nimrod,
sr.'s and Wyatt geneologies work papers. Of course, to the
current family historians, it's Leonardo Andrea. While there are
some errors in his writings of Jonathan Smith's family history,
there is reliability in the Wyatt and Nimrod Smith, Sr.s family
grouping. He's suspect in some of these areas too, but generally
does provide an excellent benchmark for concentrated research
into both the Wyatt and Nimrod Smith lineages. One wonders
sometimes where he extracted the item he's reporting on.

In his notes regarding the Smiths in Pendleton Distrjct27,
on page 22, item #1808, regarding Nimrod Smith, Jr., he says this:
"...(he), was a son of Nimrod Smith, Sr...He definitely was not
an heir of his brother, Isaac W. Smith, and also was not a son of
the last wife, Jane Hannah Eliott...Therefore, he must have been
a son of the wife, Nancy Wyatt, provided that Nimrod Smith, Sr.
had such a wife...Benjamin Smith, a grandson of Nimrod Smith, -was
alive in 1918 in Anderson County, and Benjamin Smith stated to
some of the Alabama kin of the Nimrod Smith family, that Nimrod
Smith, Sr. married a Nancy Wyatt, but they at the time thought he
meant Lettice Wyatt... Now since Item #97 has shown up, there must
be some truth to the story that Nimrod Smith, Sr. wed a Nancy
Wyatt... Nimrod Smith, Jr., was married by 1836... Ninrod, Jr.
got his first land in 1833...and if he was aged 20 at the time he
would have been born in 1813 after Lettice had ceased to sign
dowers in 1811...". (Authors note: Item #97 of Andrea's notes
had to do with the Estate of Isaac W. Smith mentioned above.)

The bottom line is that while most later family researchers
do mention the possibility of Nimrod, Sr. having had three
marriages, they apparently hesitate to record the above
documentary evidence as contained in the probate court records
that are difficult to explain away. The evidence warrants more
than a casual remark of doubt!

A final thought on the subject: The U. S. Census Reports
for the years 1799 through 1840 only mention the names of the
Family Heads, but unfortunately not the names of the wives or
children. The adding of these names occurred in the 1850 and
Subsequent census reports, so it obviously is impossible to
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obtain these names from this source. When one looks to the a

brackets so defined they could list anyone 11v1ng in that Ar
’\ household falling into that age bracket, viz. related or
unrelated.
me
Continued reading of local newspapers and other documents of N
this period have resulted in no new discoveries of family trivia, i1
- Perhaps the reason nothing of value was found was the fact that ©f
Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth were not a part of the "local #
aristocracies" of either Pendleton or the City of And&rson d
because of their farm lands being on the peripheral of the . .
cities. A valid point! Much of local gossip written of the %
times usually centered around "mischief" or the inter-circles of i
politicians. For example, Capt. Aaron's brother, Jesse Rhodes | he
Smith, was a successful clothing merchant in the City of Anderson : p!
for many years of this period. You will see in periodic ! e
newsprint references to him and to his family members. Jesse ! i1
Rhodes Smith's son, Luther Preston Smith (L. P. Smith), had much tl
involvément in the "“temperance movement" of the early 199@s and Wi
was alderman for the City of Anderson from 1982-1984, for example. e;
|
The one source that should have some reference to Capt. :j
Aaron would be in the minutes of the Farmers Society, one of the ar
oldest farmers guilds in the Unit%% States, having been organized .
in Pendleton, S. C. in 1815 and is still apparently .
functioning. No reference was found of Capt. Raron there, but asi sl
the records in the Pendleton Historical Society are incomplete as a:
”N to their "meetings" there may yet be references in some other
archives in South Carolina. H
s
"""""""""""" s
1864 s
khkkkkkkkkkhkkkk &
8
Other than the few items just brought forth, no more was
found that is published about Capt. Aaron or Elizabeth in either
of the local archives in Pendleton or in the .City of Anderson. o
There probably will be some eventually found in personal B
memorabilia items that will be brought out with continued study. 0Q
Ci
However, what can be gleaned from the available sparig i F
information of this period can be found in his estate papers. 5 J
Whatever he did for the period extending from his marriage to J|
Elizabeth in 1810 to his death in 1864, he did "right" as the : R
saying goes. $
Vandiver's History of Anderson County3g that was later revise
by Mr. R. M. Smith of Anderson, S.C., gives one a capsuled w|
impression of the measurement of "wealth" just before the t
Conflict of 1861. In the book he stated: "...some of the Wl
business men of the days preceding the War Between The States h
~N were: (author's note: They will not be listed now. The one o
person that is listed is Capt. Aaron's 'step-brother, Jesse R i
(Rhodes) Smith.)" ...They were all from the Village (City) of b
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Anderson in the year 1849.

This list was furnished, along with a list of all the
merchants of the county, by an Anderson lawyer of the time to a
New York business man who wrote asking him confidential
jnformation about the merchants. He was a shrewd man, and his
opinion and comments on the business men of the time are worth
reading, as they tell what kind of people formed the county. The
lawyer is very frank and full of information, tells the ages of
the men, whether married or single, number of children, and
approximates the value of each man's property. Often he says,
"js good for more than he will promise," tells whether he buys or
sells for cash or credit, whether his credit is good. Sometimes
he says some man has married a rich widow, and can use her
property, which he will to his advantage. Of one he says: "he
is extravagant, hasn't much sense, but is full of high notions--
if he is worth any property, I don't know it." Of one he says
that "he hasn't much sense, but he knows it." "is cautious and
will not venture much." Of another he says that "he hasn't much
education, but is a fine business man and a perfect shaver as you
ever saw." "He owns town lots worth $5,008, has land in the
vicinity worth $--,000; has $2,000 or $3,000 in stocks and bank;
and about 48 slaves; he merchandises and farms, buys and sells on
credit, owes money at home, but pays promptly. His father is a
rich man, very old, and when he dies will come in for a good
share. If he should visit North, those who sell him will earn
all the profit they make."

Seven or eight or ten thousand dollars was wealth, and forty
slaves a great number; most of them owned only two or three
slaves. Only one man is quoted as hav%Tg a hundred, and lands
worth $20,000, and a capital of $100,000°.

As you can readily see, things haven't changed much in
society and about people at least since the mid-1800s.

However, relating this bit of knowledge to Capt. Aaron Smith
one finds that upon examining his estate papers that the "Sale
Bill of the Goods and Chattels of Aaron Smith, Deceased" dated
October 27, 1864 brought in $37,985.30. There were two $100
Confederate bonds; seven $1,000, 7% Confederate bonds dated
February 29, 1863; a $45 receivable from his brother-in-law,
Jesse Lewis, to reimburse Aaron for the payment by Aaron of
Jesse's taxes; and proceeds from the sale of his lands to H. D.
Rochesteg in the amount of $1,0845. The grand total is
$46,275.30°2.

When one then does relate Capt. Aaron's estate proceeds to
what Vandiver translated "wealth" being in the mid-180@s, and
taking into account the fact that commerce in rural America then
was carried on to a large extent by use of the "barter system",
having had possession of §$7,200 cash to buy bonds is indicative
of someone having reached some measure of financial success. So
it is no wonder one begins to see the prefix of "Capt." appearing
before Aaron's name on the District of Anderson, S.C. tax rolls
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of 1853 and subsequent years.

As a matter of conjecture, one wonders when the State
of South Carolina will meet its financial obligations and pay off
on those seven $1,000, 7%, C.S.A. bonds issued February 28, 1863;
These in particular: -‘No.s 10036, 10037, 10¢38, 170467, 170484,
176485, and 170486. If Russia is thinking about paying off op
World War I "Czar Bonds", so can South Carolina and the other

states that formed the Confederate States of America. These
states still exist today! N\

While the Confederate States of America cannot replace the
lives lost of the sons and grandchildren of Capt. Aaron or the :
lost years from disability, or prison camp confinement, much more :

is due them than "Statues in the Parks". As a matter of fact,
much more is due the common man from both sides...if later Indian
descendants can get reimbursement for broken treaties ang
governmental misgivings, then so should all of its citizens. The
immediate families losses is contained in the addendum attached
at the end of this generation.

As a final comment for this period, Jesse Smith mentioned
not only the death of his father, Capt. Aaron, but that of his
mother. After Capt. Aaron's death, Elizabeth had lived for a
while first with her daughter, Caroline Rowland, then finally
with her daughter, Catherine Craig. According to Jesse again:

. Meeess 1876 March the 31 Friday. Mrs. Elizabeth Smith
died this morning at about 4 o clock--Dock went to Central after
Rowlin & family--then to Pendleton after burial trimings. Luther
went to W. S. Smiths--Andrew went to N. T. Smiths. W. S. & N. T.
Smith and I went to old Lebanon and laid off the grave for our
mother on the south side of our father--many persons came in
after her death."

Teeien 1876 April the 1 Saturday. Rain all day and all
night not with standing the rain preporations was made for the
berial and many persons were colected at Craigs Hill to acompany
the corps to the grave yard."

".....1876 April the 1 Saturday. The berial took place
at about 4 o'clock in the rain--Seth from Pendleton conducted the
berial. Many persons were present--farewell to fathsg & mother.

J. J. Smith"

(Author's note: While Jesse had indicated a purchasing of 23
headstone for his father, later personal visits to the 0ld
Lebanon Church Cemetery by the writer failed to locate the burial
spots Jesse alluded to in his "Journal". While Capt. Aaron's
brother's headstone is still existing over Gideon's grave, it can
only be a matter of speculation on a visitors part where Capt:
Aaron, Elizabeth, and other Smith members are buried. The
cemetery to this day is inundated under much rubbish.)

Though the exact final resting places of Capt. Aaron and
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Elizabeth are uncertain, they are not forgotten. For a number of
years after the turn of this century descendants held "Smith
Family Reunions" on the nearby property of their son, Nimrod
rilman Smith, in the Lebanon Church area. One such gathering was
reported in the July 1902 Anderson Intelligencer. (See Addendum
11). It is not known how many more such reunions were held after
this reported one of 1982, but a letter written by Aaron Burrell
smith (A.B. Smith), had been sent to his Aunt Caroline Rowland
and on it was listed his current Missouri family and descendants
of his father, who was Caroline's brother, Gideon Wyatt Smith.
Though this letter wasn't dated, the one date listed was the date
of death of Henrietta Susan Gilbert Smith, which was the 23rd of
March 1919. As the information contained was primarily
geneological information, it is suspected the gatherings lasted
at least until both of the deaths of Caroline and A. B. in 1924.
perhaps we descendants of Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth Smith will
have one more "Reunion" before the turn of the century and "spill
some wine on the ground" to our ancestors memories.

Re: Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth Smith's immediate family and
children's participation in the "War Between The States":

Gideon Wyatt Smith, sons:
Aaron Burrell Smith-soldier--Missouri State Guards which
became the 3rd Missouri Infantry...Held the line at the
"Big Black" after the Battle of Champion's Hill which
preceded the "Siege of Vicksburg, Mississippi....
prisoner of war---survived the war.

Isaac Jonathan Smith-soldier--Missouri State Guards which
became the 3rd Missouri Infantry...retreated after The
Battle of Champion's Hill into the City of Vicksburg...
wounded in action and surrendered with the garrison at
the fall of Vicksburg. Prisoner of war...later
released and was discharged having sustained permanent
disability.

Whitaker Guyton Smith, sons:

Jesse Lewis Smith-soldier-2nd South Carolina Rifles
(Longstreet's Division)...wounded at The Battle of
Gaines Mill, returned to duty and was captured at
Knoxville, Tenn., after being in the Battles of
Chickamauga and Lookout Mountain...prisoner of
war...died in the military prison at Rock- Islagd,
Illinois, 15 February 1864...was buried in grave #503.

Roswell Calhoun Smith-soldier-2nd South Carolina Rifles...
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wounded at the Battle of the Wilderness, died of
complications sustained from amputation of a leg at
the hospital at Camp Winder, Richmond, Va. 25 June
1864...grave not found but is assumed to be buried
near the hospital grounds...

Scott Nimrod Smith-soldier-Company G, 2nd battalion--
under the command of Capt. John Martin, guarding
Federal Army prisoners at the "Asylum" in Columbia,
S. C....died 18 January 1865, ...burial site unknown
per his brother, Dresden Aaron Smith...Scott died
of typhoid pneumonia. N

Jonathan Gipson Smith

Soldier--1st South Carolina Rifles (Orr's)--(A.P. Hill's
Light Division-Army of Northern Virginia)...served and
fought in most of the battles of Northern Virginia from
1861 to late 1864--at this time he was discharged from

the service because of age, viz., 44 years of age...never
recovered from bad health acquired while in service...

he died 23 April 1865 according to his brother, Jesse James
Smith's "Journal".

Caroline Virginia Tags Smith-~husband:

Henry David Rowland-soldier-lst South Carolina Rifles(Orr's)
wounded in action in one of earliest battles fought by Orr's
Rifles at "Gaines Mill" action of "Seven Days Battles"
around Richmond, Virginia...head wound left him paralyzed
from the waist down until his death some years later.

Catherine Elizabeth Smith--husband:

David J. B. Graig-cavalry-"lLong's Raiders"--until the end
of the war in 1865. The unit was stationed most of the
time out of Greenville, South Carolina and raided Federal
units primarily. He died 1 May 1865.

Mary Marina Smith Rogers--son:

It is believed, though not confirmed, that she may have had

a son who was killed during the war, Aaron John Rogers.
(Author's Note: With the exception of Scott Nimrod Smith and
Mary Roger's son, Aaron John, the other above soldiers military
records can be obtained from the Federal Archives in Washington
D. C.)
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Generation IV

Re: "Reunion of the Smith Family":34

“Mr. Editor: The most delightful and instructive occasion within

the recollection of the oldest citizens of the Lebanon section

was the annual reunion on Wednesday of the Descendants of Jonathan
smith, at the o0ld homestead of Nimrod T. Smith, now owned by his

son, Joseph N. Smith. About 30@ persons were present to

participate in the reunion and every one was loud in his praises

of the broad hospitality of the Smith connection.

"Mr. R. M. Burns called the meeting to order and introduced
the orator of the day, Judge D. A. Smith (Dresden Aaron Smith),
of Walhalla. Judge Smith then read a carefully prepared sketch
of the genealogy of the Smith Family, which was remarkable for
its accuracy of detail and depth of research, claiming and
proving the title of the Smith family to a long and honorable
record, second to none of those who lay claim to noble ancestral
prestige. The carefully collected and methodically arranged data
presented by Judge Smith was so complete that it was decided to
verify and extend it, re-edit it and have it put in pamphlet
form, and for this purpose a committee was appointed consisting
of Judge D. A. Smith, John Baylis Smith, Whit W. Smith, Luther P.
(Preston) Smith and T. A. Ratliffe. This committee hopes to be
able to present a complete and accurate family history with the
aid of the individual descendants of Jonathan Smith and they
request that the head of each household prepare at once a
statement showing the name of his father and mother, grandfather
and grandmother and the names of his wife and children and hand
the same to some member of the committee.

"After a sumptuous and much relished al fresco dinner, Mr.
Luther P. Smith entertained the crowd in a very neat and witty
discourse on Smiths, their characteristics, etc. He dwelt at
length upon Judge Smith's statement that one of the old
patriarchal Smiths was said to have been very homely, in fact
ugly, so ugly, tradition says, that he was afraid to sleep by
himself. Mr. Smith replied indignantly, that insinuation that
this man could have been an ancestor of his.

"The following resolutions were unanimously adopted:

“"RESOLVED, that we have listened with pleasure to the address
Of Mr. D. A. Smith, giving a sketch of the Smith family, and
hereby tender to him our very sincere thanks for the same; and

"RESOLVED FURTHER, That we hereby tender our very sincere
thanks to Messrs. Joseph Smith and L. P. Smith and all other and
all its attendant pleasures."” E




image14.jpeg
- Generation IV

Re: The children of Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth Smith with trivia
commentaries:

1. Gideon Wyatt Smith

Born: 18 May 1811

Died: 16 August 1879

Married Twice: 1st to Elizabeth Morris near Athens, Tenn.
(Born 7 January 1819; died 18 December 1835
They had a son named Jesse and on his headstone
is the following inscription: "Infant son of
Elizabeth & G. W. Smith, died in 1835". Both
Elizabeth and son, Jesse, are buried in the
cemetery at Zion Hill Baptist Church which is
three miles S. W. of Englewood, Tenn.

2nd. Caroline Behethlin Barker, also near
Athens, Tenn. and as in the instance of
Elizabeth Morris was a student of Gideon's
when he was a teacher there.

Gideon was a teacher, farmer, and local justice of the peace.
After Gideon left his family home near Pendleton, S. C., he
married two local girls of near Athens, Tenn. He and his family
f—\ remained in Tenn. until the year 1846 and according to his son,
Aaron B., relocated to St. Clair County, Missouri near the
present towns of Warsaw, Iconium, and Oseola. The lands were
for a long time referred to as "Smith Bend" as they emcompassed 2
bend of the Osage River which now is inundated and a part of the
™\ "Lake of the Ozarks". Only the cemetery and small amounts of
acreage remain "high and dry". The author of this section of
Cousins Four descends from this line.

2. Letty Smith: .
Born 21 February 1813
Died: Unknown
Married: Richard Lee, 17 September 1840.

At the time of her father's death, she lived at Varnelli Stations
Ga.. It is believed they had a farm there. According to Letty's

brother, Jesse, they did have two daughters, who were married.
One daughter's name was Mary E. Lee, born 3@ July 1841 amd marriet

to: William Melver (?) Smith, born 27 July 1867, and JameS
Reunion held by Dresden Aaron Smith, he indicated in his "paper

in Arkansas, but were lost track of. Unless Letty and her family

~h6=

a George H. Smith, on 1@ August 1865. Another daughter named i
Jane N. Lee, born 4 March 1847 and married a George Smith on 9¢
September 1866. There were two sons listed by Jesse and the:
writer cannot determine which Smith parents above they were borf .

Harrison Smith, born 23 October 1869. According to a Smith .

m that Letty had three daughters, now deceased, that they had 1ived '
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relocated in Arkansas, the last known address Jesse wrote in his
Journal entry of 23 March 1873, was: R. H. Lee, P. O. Deview,
woodruff Co., Ark. {(About 14 miles north east of Little Rock,
Ark.)

3. Whitaker Guyton (Giton) Smith:

i Born: 3 March 1815
Died: 16 June 1864
Married: Elizabeth M. Lewis, ? November 1839. According to
his son, Dresden Aaron Smith, she was the daughter of Hannah
and Jesse Lewis..(Hannah nee Smith in turn was a sister to ’
Capt. ARaron Smith, so she was a first cousin of Whitaker

3 Guyton Smith.)

@ whitaker was a teacher and on occasion a land surveyor, according

to his son, Dresden, "...was one of the most progressive and
successful school teachers in Anderson County. For many years he
served on the examining board for teachers®®...". In addition, his
brother, Jesse James Smith, qualified him as being a "surveyor".
Dresden stated in his paper that Whitaker and Elizabeth had eight
children: five sons and three daughters. Jesse Lewis, Roswell
Calhoun, Scott Nimrod, William Wyatt Clarkston, and the oldest
was Dresden Aaron. The three daughters were Mary, Lucy, and
Lula. At the time of his writing this paper only two of the
eight children were still living, Dresden and Lula. He didn't
say anything about Lula so it is not known if she had been

cgg married or not. He said that he had been married twice. First,
ily to Gertrude V. Small of Abbeville, S. C. and the second time to
on, Kathleen O'More Small, a sister of his first wife. He was
the married to Gertrude on 24 Dec. 1869. She died 17 Nov. 1877 and
ere he married Kathleen on 15 January 1879. Of the first marriage
L3 a he had two children, the oldest dying in infancy, and a son,
the Walter, who was a printer in the Government Printing office in
of Washington, D. C. Of his second marrjage there were four
of children: Gertrude Talula, Dresden, Jr., Marvin Jessie, and
Kathleen. Kathleen died when she was 4. Only Gertrude and
Marvin were alive at the time of his paper. (Author's note: The
Dresden paper referred to was copied by one Mrs. Dewey Welborn
(Mildred Smith Welborn) on 5 February 1954. She claimed that she
had copied the paper from another copy handed down to her since
at least 1927.
kon, 4. Nimrod Tilman Smith:
fy's Born: 3 June 1817
N Died: 12 August 1899
-ried Married: Martha Eliza Major, 24 December 1839.
ed
B: 9 Brother Jesse James Smith in his journal titled his occupations
the as being "blacksmith-farmer". When one reads into Jesse's

born journal, on page 125 Jesse mentioned that he had "...hauled 6
loads of sorgam to Nimrod Tilman's mill..." This entry was made

- on 11 October 1877. An entry in the journal dated 4 December
[per 1877 mentioned him as "blacksmithing”. -An eptry on 12 May 1875
jved Mentioned that "...N. T. Smith got his foot mashed with the sleg
mi 1Y hammer...". A family photo taken of him, Martha, and some sons
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in 1896 shows Nimrod seated with a cane in hand. From Jesse's
journal, it seemed that Nimrod was always around when the family
needed him. Nimrod owned a grist mill. "Grist" is any grindable
grain. So in addition to being a blacksmith-farmer, it appears
he was also a business man owning a grist mill. A "grist mill»
represents one of the earliest forms of "automation". It
provided most of our early American farm communities a ready forp
of "“"barter". Excess bags of ground grain could be traded for
those items that a farmer could not make himself. A blacksmith
of the times was not necessarily a "shoer of horses". Thi3 was
usually done by a "farrier". The blacksmith was a metal worker
and had to know five basic metal working functions: 1. drawing
(drawing out of metal); 2. shaping (usually shaping the metal on
the horn or anvil); 3. upsetting (putting blunt ends on cylinder
rivets, or nails); 4. punching (working holes in metal); and 5.
welding (until the advent of spot-welding in the early 1999s, a
blacksmith was the only man who knew by trade how to fuse two
metals together--note "fuse" not "weld". With this trade, N. T.
Smith was a very valuable person to know in the "old days". He
probably knew more about the people in his community than the so-
called aristocracies of Pendleton and Anderson. He in all
probability made the iron tools and appliances of his area. A
blacksmith made cooking utensils, toasters, door latches, pot
holders, candle holders, many types of lighting devices, and
building materials such as nails, hinges, door latches, nuts and
bolts.

5, Jonathan Gipson Smith:
Born: 18 December 1819
Died: 23 April 1865
Married: Sarah Ann Cherry (Sary Ann)

According to his brother, Jesse'e journal, page 98: "e..(The
birthday and day of death of Jonathan Gipson Smith) is as above.
Sary Ann, born March 31, 1844, and died January 26, 1876
(Wednesday). Children, Susan Mariar Smith, born November 9, 1847
and married to John Wright, September 22, 1878...December 5.
1879, Susan's first borp boy. The second child, Mary Catherine
Smith, was born in November 1850, and died October 20, 1872.
Married a Pressley and had a son." Dresden Aaron Smith, a nephevw
of Jonathan's, wrote this about him: "...Jonathan Gipson Smith,
another son of Raron and Elizabeth Smith, married Sarah Cherry of
Pendleton, by whom he had two girls, Mary and Susan. Mary
married a Mr. Pressly and is now dead. Susan married a Mr:
Wright from Tenn. and is living near Easley, S. C. They have two
or more children. Jonathan Smith and wife are both dead. He was
a soldier in Orr's regiment of rifles and participated in nearly
all the battles of the army of Northern Va. where he
distinguished himself for bravery and fidelity of duty.”

6. Mary Marina Smith:
Born: ca 1821
Died: 26 September 1853
Married: C. Perry Rogers
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According to her brother Jesse's journal, page 94, her date of
death is an indicated above. He also wrote: "...she died 26
September 1853 leaving 2 sons, 1 daughter..." The names provided
were: Nathaniel Commodore Rodgers, William Joseph Rodgers, and
Georgian, born 1849. Georgian married Miles R. Ellison who was
born 1847, and they had two children at the time of the writing:

"Elizabeth Ellison born 1879" and "Joel P. Ellison born 1873".
Mary Marina Rogers children were heirs of her father's estate and
were minors at the time and had a court appointed legal guardian
who petitioned the other heirs to sell Capt. Raron's lands and
the proceeds distributed. Apparently, the land division could
not be agreed upon by the heirs at the time. The petition and
service of due notice was on October 18, 1869. At this time the
three above children were listed. Dresden Aaron Smith's paper
made this comment: "...Polly Marina Smith, another daughter,
married C. Perry Rogers. Both are dead. They had three boys and
one girl. The girl, Georgia Ann, married a Mr. Ellison, by whom
there is a large family of twelve, I believe. She is living near
Williamston, in this county. The boys moved to Mississippi, and
are living in that state except Aaron John, who is dead. The
other two boys are named Codie and Joe Rogers...". - - A later
descendant of Georgia Ann Rogers, Mrs. Annie Chorpenning, wrote a
pamphlet which extends Georgia Ann Rogers to the present day,
entitled The Ancestors of Georgia Ann Rogers.

7. Caleb Smith:
Born: ca 1823
Died: "Young"

Jesse, as in the instance of two other listed family members
following, just referenced them in this order, and indicated that
they had died at a young age. It would be suspected that these
children would be buried in the same cemetery as their parents,
i.e., the old Lebanon Baptist Church Cemetary.

8. Jesse James Smith:
Born: 16 February 1827
Died: Unknown
Married: Unknown

Jesse was the hero of the Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth Smith saga.
Had it not been for his journal, we might still be in the dark
and nurturing the vague and sometimes inaccurate "family

traditions" regarding our line of "Smiths". We owe him our
eternal thanks for capturing on paper for later readers his and
his “families "lives and times", and to the Craigs of "Craig's
Hill" who fondly preserved our Smith heritage of Pendleton, S. C.

9. Catherine Elizabeth Smith:
Born: 7 April 1829
Died: 31 July 1883
Married: David J. B. Craig

The Craigs of Jesse's "Craig's Hill", to this writing, still
reside there. One will also find Nimrod Tilman Smith's

—49-





image18.jpeg
descendants and the Craigs in the Lebanon Church section near
Pendleton. Some of Dresden's (Whitaker Guyton Smith group)
descendants still live in Walhalla. Many of the later
descendants of the remaining brothers and sisters of Capt.
Aaron's family have moved on and are scattered to the
'winds'...Gideon W. Smith's, for the most part, in the Missour;j
sections around the western part near Kansas City, MO since at
least 1846. Some Rowland families live near Central, SC but it
is uncertain of any relationship they have to Caroline V. T,
Smith Rowland. No contact has been made with any of Jonathan G.
Smith's or Letty Smith Lee's groups. Some of Mary Marina Smith
Rogers line moved to Ohio. Uncle Jesse probably never married.
When he left "Craig's Hill" around 1879, he may have returned to
Texas by way of Missouri. If he, in fact, did this, he'd head
for one of two cities in Texas...(l) where he was a sheriff for
some time, or, (2) based on a letter his brother, Gideon, had
sent to his wife, Caroline, the 25th of March 1871, which
indicated that Jesse had a "Post Master Business" and that Jesse

would "rent his houses in town..." The letter showed that
Gideon was writing from near "Cany Creek" in Henderson County,
Texas as appeared on his letter-head. Jesse's Journal used the

letter-head Athens, Texas, which is in the same county. As
Jesse's earlier section of his Journal would be what accountants
call a "Ledger Accounts-Receivable", he probably had owned a
"country store". At this time in American history, the "country
store" not only would sell groceries but also liquor, was the
local "Post Office", sometimes a Sheriff's office, candy store,
haberdashery, toy store...in effect, it sold anything that the
local inhabitants could not make themselves. If you look at the
accounts you will see some support that, to a large extent, early
19th century commerce employed the "barter-system". Also, after
examination of Jesse's Journal, he may have had a "sweetheart"
there and returned there after leaving "Craig's Hill". Some
articles appearing in the editions of The Messenger in 1976,
highlighting portions of Jesse Smith's 1873 Diary, would make
interesting reading for a new-comer taking on Captain Aaron's
family history. Dresden said this of his aunt Catherine's

family: ".,..Catherine Elizabeth Smith, the third daughter,
married David Craig. Both are dead. They \had seven children,
five now living. The living are Samuel T., who married Mamie

Parlow, now living in Anderson, surrounded by an interesting
family of children. Ruth Ann married Joseph Smith. J.D.M. (Doc)
Miller, who married Leah Rochester of Oconee County. Luther and
Kate never married. Andrew died some years ago. "Doc" Craig is
one of the model farmers of this section."

19. Joseph Aaron Smith:
Died "young"

11. Margaret Hannah Smith:
Died "young"

12. Caroline Virginia Tags Smith:
Born: 1 July 1834
Died: 4 January 1924
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Married: Henry David Rowland

presden Raron Smith wrote this of Caroline's family:
*,..Caroline Virginia Smith, youngest daughter, married Henry D.
Rowland. Five children were born to them, four boys and one
girl. They are all living except Samuel, who was accidentally
killed in Charlotte, N. C. being crushed between two cars
(railroad cars). James Rowland, the eldest, is the popular hotel
man at Central, as well as conductor on the Southern between
Atlanta and Charlotte. He married Miss Rochester, near
pendleton, and has one daughter. T. W. Rowland, another son, is
living at Statesville, N. C. He is the passesser (passenger)
conductor on the S. R. between Charlotte and Statesville. His
wife is the daughter of Col. R. A. Thompson of Walhalla (S. C.).
They had no children. Clinton Rowland, the youngest child, is
living at Central, Pickens County (S. C.). He is an employee of
Southern Railway, besides being a farmer to some extent. His
ije\was a Miss Ramseur. They had several children. Kate, the
only girl, has been married twice. Her first husband being
Richard Bellote, by whom she had two children. Her second
husband is Thomas Chatam, by whom she had five or six children.
He is engineer on S. R. between Greenville and Atlanta."

H. D. Rowland was born 9 February 1834, and died 30 December
1889. Caroline's brother, Jesse, had listed eight children born
of this marriage: James Henry, born 24 October 1858; Samuel
{Aaron), born 16 June 1863; Catherine (Nan ?), born 21 June 1863;
Thomas Wm., born 24 June 1865; Minney (Septemia), born 15
September 1872, and died 16 October 1873; Charley Rowland, born
and died, unknown; Flore, born 3 March 1869; and Clinton Rowland,
born (16) September 1874. From reading Jesse's Journal, one
gets the impression that Caroline and Henry originally rented
space in the "Cherry House” which also had a grocery store.
Then, sometime later the Rowlands relocated to Central in Pickens
County, S. C. and had a hotel and tavern there.

Her estate papers indicated at the time of her death that she had
a house and lot in the Town of Central located on Eaton Street.
"Title to the Real Estate" indicated that Caroline had this lot
conveyed to her by J. H. Rowland on 13 August 1889. (J. H.
Rowland was probably her son, James Henry Rowland). It would
appear that it was Caroline who kept the family genealogy yearly
Mmeetings going and continued writing contact with the "Missouri"
Smiths. After Caroline died on 4 January 1924, her nephew, the
"Rebel" Aaron B. Smith, died the following 24th day of May 1924,
and all contacts between the South Carolina branches and Missouri
branches ceased, until 1974. Mrs. Flora Smith Hunnicutt, of
Nimrod Tilman Smith line was good enough to send the writer a
Picture of Caroline Virginia Tags Smith Rowland. "“Tags",
according to Hazel Smith Moree of Missouri, was a middle name for
8 "Tag Bush". The Craig family, as Jesse listed them, had a
daughter, C. V. T. Craig or Caroline Virginia Tags Craig making
the unusual name of Tags the Christian name of three of Capt.
Aaron's grandchildren.
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Cousin Martha showed the writer a picture dated 18 November 191p
which had Aunt Caroline, Kate Craig, and Mr. and Mrs. W. T.
Rowland sitting on the "ledge" of Lookout Mountain in Tennessee.
There is very little doubt that this was taken either slightly
before or after their visit to Missouri with the Gideon Wyatt
Smith descendants.

With this parting quote from his great-aunt, Hazel Rebecca Tags
Smith Moree of Missouri: The writer leaves you with his “best
wishes! -

"...When I was a child there were many Smiths living in
"Smith Bend" on the Osage River. Now, there remains only one.
Soon the waters of the great Kaysinger Dam will cover the Lands
of Gideon Wyatt Smith and his sons. But, whatever work that
needs to be done, the quiet man who takes your hand in fellowship
with honest countenance is sure to be named Smith."

Guy Raymond Smith, Jr.
***The 22nd of January 1989%%%*

-
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The earliest land/deed references of Capt. Aaron Smith'g

uncle, Aaron Guyton's purchases in Anderson County were twg ;e
parcels: one of 300 acres and one of 4@ acres which were in the ":
Hopewell area of Anderson County and were adjacent to the Big .

7N Beaverdam Creek not far from his brother-in-law, Jonathan's lang ‘pn
in the Town Creek area. o

Tt

Period 2.---26 January 1797 to 16 February 1827: :z

Sometime between the death of Capt. Aaron's mother, \which
is thought to be the 28th day of September, 1796, to the 18gg Ec

Pendleton District U. S. Census that listed Jonathan's second 1
wife, obviously Jonathan had married again. No conclusive Se
evidence has been found to validate when or where Jonathan br
remarried, or what his second wife's, Elizabeth, maiden name was. :f
The only family activities for this second period that are So
documented are some land purchases and sales by his father,
Jonathan and his second wife, Elizabeth; his in-laws land y
dealings; his land dealings; his marriage announcement in the a
Pendleton Messenger of 19 July 181013; and a clear mention by s:
his son, Jesse James Smith, of Capt. Aaron and Elizabeth's old 2
residence being in the 23 Mile Creek area of Anderson County near c:
Pendleton. me
Specifically, there are two land transactions that are
identifiable to Capt. Raron's father and step-mother. The first 1€
”~\ was the sale of 12 acres to Aaron Smith recorded on the 12th day ? or
of 0ctoberl41802 of Jonathan's original 26 Mile Creek land ! f
acquisition~™; and the second, the additional purchase by this j ;
Aaron Smith of 29 acres of land owned by James Linn on the 6th b
day of May 1802 and recorded the same day as the first above g:

referenced land transaction. The 6th of May 1802 land
transaction had two witnesses, one being Capt. Aaron's father,
Jonathan, and the other being Capt. Aaron's step-mother,
Elizabeth. Jonathan made his 0f§h on the 16th of May 1802 and P‘
Elizabeth on the 6th of May 1892 . o

The weekly Pendleton Messenger issue of the 19th of July

1819 has the following wedding announcement: "Married on the A
same day (19 July 181¢), Mr. Aaron Smith to Miss Smith, daughter tl
of Mr. Nimrod Smith, all of this district." Examination of the <
original newspaper shows that there was a printing error in that § v
there is a space between Miss and Smith and if one substitutes &

the letters "Eliz." in the missing type space, these spaces are g
filled. It should also be noted that an examination of a dead ;
brother's estate papers will further validate who the Miss Smith
was who was mentioned in the July 1818 wedding announcement in
the Pendleton Messenger.

In 1839, Elizabeth, her husband, Capt. Aaron Smith, and
other family members met at the old Lebanon Church to discuss the

LE-& X. X . X-X-N ]
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settlement of Elizabeth's brother's estate. Elizabeth's brother,
Wyatt smith, and Capt. Aaron each provided a bond for the
settlement of her brother, Isaac Smith's, estate which consisted
Prjncipally of two tracts of land: "...the first lying on the
wvaters of 26 Mile Creek bounded by the lands of Whitaker Smith,
John Morris, and others containing fifty acres, more or less.
The second lying on Milwee Creek waters of 23 Mile Creek bounded
py lands of Asa Harper, Nimrti% Smith, and others containing
twenty five acres, more or less™".

Further, it should be noted in this regard that the Court of
Equity of the City of Anderson, S.C. held a session in September
1839 and it was ordered at that time that the land of Isaac
smith, deceased, be sold and the money divided amongst his
prothers and sisters “of the wh-QL]?e blood"” since Isaac was not
married and was without children~’. The probate records list
the children of the "whole blood" as being the children of Nimrod
smith and his first wife, Lettice Nichol Wyatt Smith.

Review of the land/deed record books of Anderson County
discloses numerous land purchases and sales of one Aaron (Aron)
Smith. . One particular purchase of 120 acres on Town Creek on the
25th of May 1818 from a Nicholas Welch would indicate that our
Capt. Aaron Smith had purchased this land just shortly before his
marriage to Elizabeth Smith that following July.

Other purchases of Aaron Smith for the years 1802 through
1829 transpired so that upon summation he had purchased 317 acres
on Town Creek and 222 acres on 26 Mile Creek. Which of the two
Raron Smiths, our Capt. Aaron Smith or one Aaron Smith, lately a
Lt. in the Continental Army during the American Revolution, who
bought these lands is really a moot question. No record of land
purchases on the 23 Mile Creek (Old Lebanon Church) area has been
found for Capt. Aaron Smith.

It is sure that Elizabeth's father, Nimrod Smith, had
purchased 60@ acres on the 23 Mile Creek and in the area of the
0ld Lebanon Church on the 28th of March 1818.

It can only be speculated from this analysis that our Capt.
Raron Smith and his wife, Elizabeth Smith either traded some of
their later land acquisitions with Nimrod for the final 23 Mile
Creek acreage they owned at the time of their deaths, or keeping

:ith family tradition, Nimrod and Lettice Smith had gifted same
0 them.

Whatever the case may be, Jesse James Smith, a son of Capt.
Aaron wrote in his Journal the following commentary on the 25th
of September 1877: “...Mrs. Lucy Griffin died this morning at 2
O'clock and is buried at Lebanon...Dock and I and 12 other hands
tore away the old house I was born in and helped Hal Rocheiger
to put up up a framed building 6 feet longer than the old one “..."

point to note here is the Capt. Aaron's 23 Mile Creek lands and
Uildings were so]l at a Sheriffs sale to one, Hal Rochester, to
Settle his estatel®. Also, it should be remembered that Jesse
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James Smith was born the 16th of February 1827.

So, sometime ‘between the marriage of Capt. Aaron Smith tq
his father's neighbor's daughter, Elizabeth Smith, cn the 19th of
July 1810 and the 16th of February 1827 birth of their son,
Jesse, they had by some means or device acquired the 23 Mileg
Creek residence and land. Also, with Elizabeth's father's sale
of the 176 acres on Town Creek on the 18th of December 1833 tq
his son, Nimrod Smith, Jr., he probably relocated to hijg
properties on the nearby Milwee Creek of the new Lebanon Church
area. This comment is further speculation, but, as he owned
property in the Lebanon Church area. and his last wife (be she
his second or third, whichever you prefer), Jane Elliott and her
mother are now buried in the Sandy Springs Methodist Church
Cemetery near to this land, would tend to place a measure of
creditability to this belief.

Nowhere in any documented source, and the writings of his
son, Jesse James Smith in particular, is there a reference that
Capt. Raron had the middle name of John. The use of a middle
name had not commenced in use until around 1888. This fact alone
would censure later family researchers, who do refer to Capt.
Aaron Smith from adding a middle name, John. In the some 209 plus
pages in his Journal not once did Jesse incorporate the middle
name of John for his father. Capt. Aaron Smith did not have a
middle name. There is some confusion here because Capt. Aaron

e A 55

Smith had a brother, Whitaker Smith, who named a son, Aaron John :
smith, and they both lived in the same area at the same time in :
history. A word of caution to those later family researchers who :
explore the estate filings of Anderson County: you will find two
Aaron Smith's estate administration returns being filed on the

same day at the City of Anderson's Court House on the 29th of

August 1864. Don't be alarmed because one filing is indeed for ;

Aaron John Smith and the other one is for (Capt.) Aaron Smith.

Aaron John Smith, a nephew of Capt. Aaron Smith, had just
recently been "blown-up" with the 22nd South Carolina Volunteer
Infantry at Petersburg, Virginia, the 3@th of July, 1864, and was
a casualty of war, whereas Capt. Aaron Smith, his uncle, had
just recently expired from natural causes. Aaron John Smith was
a sergeant and engineer in the 22nd South Carolina Volunteers:
Infantry, and Capt. Aaron Smith was not in the military at this
time. As a matter of fact no evidence can be found to validate
any military service whatsoever for Capt. Aaron of Pendleton,

i

—

S.C. His brother, Whitaker Smith, had served in the War of 1812. .

Probably in keeping with local custom our Aaron Smith was
labelled as Capt. because he had achieved some measureable social
stature as a planter of the time.

The earliest documentary reference to him as Capt. is in an
analysis of the general tax returns for the District of Anderson
South Carolina, starting with the tax year of 1853. SubsequentlY
after 1853 the designation Capt. will be found before his name.
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Period 3.---16 February 1827 to 15 August 1864:

pDuring this period of Capt. RAaron's 1life are the four
specific references which are of some geneological interest.

They are contained in the following sources:

1. 1837 The "Sesquicentennial Program" of the %ebanon
Baptist Church, Anderson County, S.C.2

2. 1839 The "Probate Records" of the "Estate of
Isaac S. Smith", Anderson County Wills ang
Probate Records, Archives, Columbia, S.C. 1

3. 1847 The "Probate Records" of the "Estate of
Nimrod Smith, Anderson County Wills and
Probate Records, Archives, Columbia, S.C.22
and,

4. 1864 The "Probate Records" of the "Estate of
= Capt. Aaron Smith", Anderson County Wills
and ggobate Records, Archives, Columbia,
s.C.

1837

-The Sequicentennial Program-
khkkkhkhkkhkkhkhkkkhkhkhkkhkkhkkhhkkkhk

It is not surprising to find some reference to Capt. Aaron
or his family as would be contained in the local church archives.
The reason simply being that a church building of the times, or a
county court house for example, were more than meeting places
than just for the basic purpose they were built for, viz.
religion, law case trials. The buildings were being used to a
measureable extent for sccial affairs, gossip meetings, town hall
political gatherings or whatsoever. Capt. Aaron was quite active
in the 0ld Lebanon Church at this time.

This would explain to a degree why this church building was
a meeting place for Capt. Aaron, his wife, Elizabeth, and other
interested parties used in order to discuss a non-secular
matter...the providing of an "Estate Bond" in the settlement of
the estate of Elizabeth's brother, Isaac Smith.

In the first instance of the Sequicentennial Program as
Yeported in their record book for 1 July 1837 "...The Church
appointed a committee consisting of Brother Aaron Smith, Jesse
Lewis, Asa Harper, and Joseph Eaton, along with sister Elizabeth
Smith to meet with a black woman, nams% Mary" and "loek into
the matter of her having left her husband“®..." What was the

Outcome of this meeting? Brother Aaron and sister Elizabeth
wWere our progenitors of the Fourth Generation, Jesse Lewis was
their brother-in-law and the husband of Capt. Aaron's sister,
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Hannah, and the Harpers not only old friends but related by
blood... What relationship, if any, Joseph Eaton was is not
known. At any rate, it appears to have been a "stacked jury".

To further add insult to injury as the "old saying goes" if
the Negro, Mary, is the same one listed in Capt. Aaron's
"appraisement bill" of 17 September 1864, she was valued for $60g
and later sold to one Mrs. L. Phillips for the sum of $375 on the
27th of October 1864. The "sale Bill" 1jstin§gthe sale to Mrs,
Phillips recorded..."...old Negro woman (Mary)<>..."

1839 and 1847
The Probating of the Estates of

Isaac W. Smith (1839) and Nimrod Smith, Sr. (1847)
hkkkhkkhkkkxhkhkhhkhkkhkkhhkhkkhkhkhkkdhkhkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkkhhkhhhhkhhkdkhkkk

These two items are incorporated, not only because of Capt.

e

Aaron Smith's involvement in them, but also because of some !

interesting questions that arise from them regarding Elizabeth's
family.

The 1839 item was alluded to in period 2 just preceding.
The meeting that was first held at the 0ld Lebanon Church and
officiated by the pastor, Joseph Grisham, was simply one to
determine what estate assets Elizabeth's brother possessed at the
time of his death. As indicated in his estate inventory listing,
other than the two parcels of land, one on the 2 Mile Creek, and
the other on the 23 Mile Creek, he was not possessed with a large
estate. However, since he had died intestate, the state law of
South Carolina takes over and ranks his heirs as first being his
brothers and sisters of the "whole blood”. In this case, his
brothers and sisters of the "whole blood" were of the marriage of
Nimrod Smith, Sr. and Lettice Nichol Wyatt. When one looks intoc
Isaac's estate papers, they will see that the brothers and
sisters of the "whole blood" are: Wyatt Smith, William Smith,
Caleb Smith, Silas Smith, and San{(d)ford Smith, brothers; and
Nancy Smith, wife of John Kay; Elizabeth Smith, wife of Capt.
Raron Smith; Malina Smith, wife of Charles. Bell; Lettice
Smith, wife of Thomas Brown; and Mathilda Smith, wife of Jesse
Swain, sisters.

When one matches this listing of brothers and sisters of the
"whole blood" against one just recently published by a cousin, a
question would automatically be raised. First the list: Caleb
Smith, Lettice Smith, Elizabeth Smith, Nancy Smith, Wyatt Smith,
William Smith, Talitha Smith, Mathilda Smith, Isaac (Isaac W.)
Smith, Malina . Smith, Silas Smith, Lemuel Smith, Nimrod Smith,

. Jr., Sanford Vandiver Smigh, Dianna Smith, Sarah Smith, Robert
Smith, and Columbus Smith“®.

In addition it will be noted that Nimrod Smith, Sr. had a
last son by a later marriage to Jane H. Elliott named John Gaston
Smith.
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